HIGGINS BRICK RUINS
AL-I-C-007
mid 19th century

The Higgins Brick Ruins once consisted
of a two story brick house abutted by a
large frame addition. Fire destroyed nearly
all but the interesting two story brick
chimney that had two openings on each of
the two floors. One corner of the brick
house is also left standing, and it shows
that there was a combination of American
Common Bonding as well as Flemish Bonding,
a mixture of style unique in Allegany

County.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Higgins Brick Ruing 1is located 3/4 mile northwest of
the Stickpile Tunnel with a close frontage to the Chesapeake
and Ohio Canal.

The Higgins Brick House was gutted by fire and now stands
in ruins. However, it consisted of a two story brick half abut-
ted by a two story frame structure. One corner of the brick
half still stards, and features both American Common Bond and
Flemish Bonding. The huge brick chimney still stands erect
and has two openings for fireplaces on the first floor and two
openings on the second floor. The frame portion was built upon
a low stone foundation which is all that is left standing on
that half of the former structure.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SiGNIFICANCE

.otomac

A two story brick house abutted by a large frame addition once
stood on the site of what is known today as the Higgins Brick Ruins.
Unfortunately, the structure was destroyed by fire, so we must depend
upon first hand reports as to what it once looked like. Still stand-
ing is the interesting two story brick chimney. It had four openings;
two to the first floor and two on the second, each of which was facing

their respective rooms at 45° angles (See enclosed diagram).

Farming

was the probable occupation of the household because of location near the

River and C & O Canal.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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John Nelson, Joan Baldwin & Steve Beale

ORGANIZATION DATE
Allegany County Historic Sites Survey 11/3/76
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

On the property of the Maryland Department of Natural Resources at Green
Ridge State Forest in Allegany County along Carroll Rcad is a single large stone
furnace stack and foundations presumably associated with an industrial complex. The
site is located at the southeast edge of Green Ridge State Forest in a hollow known
as Devil's Alley at the east base of Town Hill. Approximately one mile southeast of
the stone chimney are ruins of a brick dwelling house which stood facing east along
the Potomac River and the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal at the mouth of Devil's Alley.
Although. the brick house stands on private property, it is proposed for future
acquisition by the Department of Natural Resources, according to rangers at Green
Ridge. The two sites are linked by a small run or stream by which stands the stone
chimney. The stream opens into the Potomac River near the brick house site.
Following the stream is the course of a narrow gauge railroad and a depression in the
earth suggesting either an old washed out road bed ora sluiceway. These sites
are unexplained at present.

The furnace stack stands approximately 30 feet high, is built of coursed
native stones, and is tapered, becoming narrow at its top. A stone corbel forms
a drip source near the top of the chimney. It rests on roughly coursed fieldstone
foundations which continue, where visible, to form a rectangular base for a building.
The chimney stands at the east end of the structure with a low opening partially
hidden by a pile of earth and rubble. Inside, the stack is lined with brick. In
1974 the chimney was restored by the Youth Conservation Corps.

The brick house ruins consist of parts of east and north walls along with
foundations and rubble. It was a two story structure, possibly three bays wide with
Flemish bonding used at the front or east elevation. Evidence remains of a frame
addition at the south end wall. Common bonding on the side and rear walls is of a
type associated with 18th and very early 19th century construction. This bonding
has three courses of stretchers between header rows. Mortar joints are struck and
some retain white accent lines over red oxide paint. Diagonal fireplaces, typical
of the 18th century, were located within the north end wall and several hand wrought
nails were found on the site.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE . . . .
The location of the stone chimney and the brick house ruins suggest that their

history is somehow linked. Together they have merit for the architectural form they
suggest and as artifacts of industrial or commercial and residential activity along
the Potomac River during the late 18th and 19th centuries. There are questions about
the original purpose of the complex. The chimney's appearance suggest some sort of
industrial use although itis unlike iron furnace stacks in the area. Its proximity
to the Potomac River, the C & 0 Canal and the Vestern Maryland Railway with the tram
railroad 1inking the chimney site to the canal and railroad does support the presumed
industrial nature of the complex. While the use of the railroad and canal would be
associated with the second quarter of the 19th century and later, the presence of

the brick house seemingly dating from the 18th century must also be considered.
Although the house is in ruins enough evidence remains to indicate that it was
relatively refined among houses of the period in Allegany County.

Land records for the stone chimney on DNR property were checked by rangers at
Green Ridge State Forest but were found not to be helpful since much confusion
arose around identification and ownership of the mountain land parcels belonging
to DNR. Therefore, deeds for the brick house ruins known as the Higgins property
vwere searched in an effort to find a clue to former use and history of both sites.

Since 1859 the property upon which the brick house ruins stand has been made
up of three land grant tracts with like acreage except for several out conveyances
over the past century. The three tracts were "Hermit's Abode: (311 acres),
"River Hil1" (175-7/8 acres) and "Sisterhood" (52-7/8 acres). The largest parcel,
"Hermit's Abode" carried with it the explanation that it had been resurveyed for
Ovid McCrackin on June 25, 1810. The property was described as that upon which Ovid
McCrackin's dwelling stood. In 1859, (18/363) John T. Edwards, trustee in equity
proceedings between Ellen Bevans and Joseph Bevan's sold the property containing
the three above mentioned tracts to Ransom Higgins. The tracts, "River Hill" and
"Sisterhood" were patented to Henry Bevans on March 3, 1840 and March 2, 1840 respectively

On September 17, 1832, Samuel Jesse of Shelby County, Kentucky sold "Hermit's
Abode" to Henry Bevans, for $1,600. (Q/125) Samuel Jesse had held the property only
for a few months having acquired it on June 23, 1832, from Moses Rawlings, Esq.
(0/69). Rawlings, who was Sheriff of Allegany County, sold the property as a result
of a judgement against the Heirs of Daniel Lantz.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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A-17
Green Ridge State Forest
DNR#: None -

Stone Chimney and Higgins Brick Ruins (privatg
Allegany County

(SIGNIFICANCE, continued)

Daniel Lantz acquired the 311 acres tract (F/307) "Hermit's Abode" on October
22, 1811 from Ovid McCrackin. No records were found prior to Ovid McCracken's
ownership.

Ransom Higgins for whom the property is named and his heirs owned this and
surrounding land from 1859 til 1952. (242/525).

Unfortunately the deeds did not leave any clues as to the use of this piece
of property. Out conveyances were noted for the C & O Canal and a lock house but
there were no other references to any industrial or commercial complex.

One supposed explanation for the stone chimney could be that its use was connected
somehow with the construction of the C & 0 Canal during the mid 19th century. Another
suggestion offered was the possibility of the stone chimney site having been a
distillery.

It would seem that with the lack of historical dataabout the sites, some
archeological work might be in order. A search should be made for artifacts in the
vicinity of the stone chimney which could aid in pinpointing the use and the age
of the structure.
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ADDENDA

In 1984 the Department of PFMatural Resources contracted
with Joe Getty to conduct a follow-up survey of selected
historic properties on DNR lands. DNR funded the field
survey and photography but did not prepare finished copy.

The attached photocopy pages were forwarded to the

Maryland Historical Trust to supplement existing files.

All original material and photographs remain in the possession
of the Department of Natural Resources under the supervision

of Ross Kimmel (x3771) .
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DRAFT--Description for Higgins Brick Ruins

1

The Higgins Brick Ruins is the site of a brick house that once stood
along the C & O Canal. All that remains of the structure is its foundation
wall and a two-story chimney. It appearspthat the chimney has been able to

of he vewandis o o noi
withstand the deteriorationﬂbecause it consisted of corner fireplaces that
created a triangular base for the stability of the chimney. Otherwise, it
is difficult to determine the features of the original house. The brick
walls that exist are all laid in common bond. It appears that there is a

) .
Ny ;"{"‘-8‘7‘5’: At
cellarway at the easteyrmn side of the sewth facade and cellar windows in the

eswst facade where the chimney exists. So it appears there was a partially

)

excavated cellar much of which has been filled in by the rubble brick.
. A‘%Lﬂ.

5oe

There is also evidence of a wing that projected from the wa:i side of the

structure. The brick ruins %ive evidence that a fairly refined Federal style

brick house stood on this site. However, there is little that remains today.
(Fix_the elcvationst—ehimpeyv-qu theWoTrth Tacades~addition

at- -the-south. {agade,. and.eask-facade-probably-the ndin facade on -the - struckure)

The Higgins Brick Ruins are located along the C & O Canal at the
mouth of Devils Alley. This site is located north of Greegggdge Station)
approximately cne mile from Kasecamp Road. The structure was constructed
on a level savea along a stream approximately four hundred feet west of the
Chesapeake and Ohio Canal. The ruins have the appearance of a rathevr refined
structure for this region and are probably linked in some way to the life
along the canol.

Judging by evidence in the brick ruins, the original st ucture was
a4 two~story brick house with a gable vocf. The main facade faced east and
wvas construacted of Eicmish bond. Corwnn bond was used on the other facades

laid in three courses of stretchers between each header row (a bonding type
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DRAFT--Description for Higgins Brick Ruins

assocjated with the eighteenth and very early anineteenth century comstructisal.

R -
The mortar joints are struck and retain some white accent lines over red oxgids

paint. The dimensions of the structure ave twenty-two feet by twenty-six

feet. It is not possible to determine where the doors and windows were on the

he chimney to the house is still standing and bas diagonal fireplaces

that were located on the north gable wall of the structure. We can speculate
that the structure was built with a Federal style plan of two rooms perhaps
with a hallway on the south side of the house (a stairhall)-as was typically
used in the late eighteenth century. On the interior wall, plaster was
applied directly onto a brick surface. The plaster is made of a limg)horse—

hair and sand substance. The chimney with its deteriorated brick shows the

L
St
flue system fhaf*}eﬂ4~Lh@~smoke~away—£¥9% the fireplaces. There are also

marks along the chimney surface that show where the gable roof was at the

top of the house. Onorexscctiemrofotheebdaaey On the first and second
w;a £

floor of the east end of the chimne% pieeces of wood are located in the brick

surface which probably held the mantel piece for the chimney.

On the south end of the structure, it appeared that there was an
addition that provided a wing to the main building. There is a foundation
wall that runs along the west side on the south facade for a ten foot by
sixteen foo: {rame wing. There is no other evidence about the use or

construction of this wiug. About forty fect northwest of the structure

is a covaered opening of the well for the property.

>
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__FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

On the property of the Maryland Department of Natural Resources at Green
Ridge State Forest in Allegany County along Carroll Road is a single large stone
furnace stack and foundations presumably associated with an industrial complex. The
site is located at the southeast edge of Green Ridge State Forest in a hollow known
as Devil's Alley at the east base of Town Hill. Approximately one mile southeast of
the stone chimney are ruins of a brick dwelling house which stood facing east along
the Potomac River and the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal at the mouth of Devil's Alley.
Although. the brick house stands on private property, it is proposed for future
acquisition by the Department of Natural Resources, according to rangers at Green
Ridge. The two sites are linked by a small run or stream by which stands the stone
chimney. The stream opens into the Potomac River near the brick house site.
Following the stream is the course of a narrow gauge railroad and a depression in the
earth suggesting either an old washed out road bed ora sluiceway. These sites
are unexplained at present.

The furnace stack stands approximately 30 feet high, is built of coursed
native stones, and is tapered, becoming narrow at its top. A stone corbel forms
a drip source near the top of the chimney. It rests on roughly coursed fieldstone
foundations which continue, where visible, to form a rectangular base for a building.
The chimney stands at the east end of the structure with a low opening partially
hidden by a pile of earth and rubble. Inside, the stack is lined with brick. In
1974 the chimney was restored by the Youth Conservation Corps.

The brick house ruins consist of parts of east and north walls along with
foundations and rubble. It was a two story structure, possibly three bays wide with
Flemish bonding used at the front or east elevation. Evidence remains of a frame
addition at the south end wall. Common bonding on the side and rear walls is of a
type associated with 18th and very early 19th century construction. This bonding
has three courses of stretchers between header rows. Mortar joints are struck and
some retain white accent lines over red oxide paint. Diagonal fireplaces, typical
of the 18th century, were located within the north end wall and several hand wrought
nails were found on the site.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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__INVENTION
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE ] . .
The Tocation of the stone chimney and the brick house ruins suggest that their

history is somehow linked. Together they have merit for the architectural form they
suggest and as artifacts of industrial or commercial and residential activity along
the Potomac River during the late 18th and 19th centuries. There are questions about
the original purpose of the complex. The chimney's appearance suggest some sort of
industrial use although itis unlike iron furnace stacks in the area. Its proximity
to the Potomac River, the C & 0 Canal and the Western Maryland Railway with the tram
railroad 1inking the chimney site to the canal and railroad does support the presumed
industrial nature of the complex. While the use of the railroad and canal would be
associated with the second quarter of the 19th century and later, the presence of

the brick house seemingly dating from the 18th century must also be considered.
Although the house is in ruins enough evidence remains to indicate that it was
relatively refined among houses of the period in Allegany County.

Land records for the stone chimney on DNR property were checked by rangers at
Green Ridge State Forest but were found not to be helpful since much confusion
arose around identification and ownership of the mountain land parcels belonging
to DNR. Therefore, deeds for the brick house ruins known as the Higgins property
were searched in an effort to find a clue to former use and history of both sites.

Since 1859 the property upon which the brick house ruins stand has been made
up of three land grant tracts with Tike acreage except for several out conveyances
over the past century. The three tracts were "Hermit's Abode: (311 acres),
"River Hi11" (175-7/8 acres) and "Sisterhood" (52-7/8 acres). The largest parcel,
"Hermit's Abode" carried with it the explanation that it had been resurveyed for
Ovid McCrackin on June 25, 1810. The property was described as that upon which Ovid
McCrackin's dwelling stood. In 1859, (18/363) John T. Edwards, trustee in equity
proceedings between Ellen Bevans and Joseph Bevan's sold the property containing
the three above mentioned tracts to Ransom Higgins. The tracts, "River Hill" and
"Sisterhood" were patented to Henry Bevans on March 3, 1840 and March 2, 1840 respectively

On September 17, 1832, Samuel Jesse of Shelby County, Kentucky sold "Hermit's
Abode" to Henry Bevans, for $1,600. (Q/125) Samuel Jesse had held the property only
for a few months having acquired it on June 23, 1832, from Moses Rawlings, Esq.
(Q/69). Rawlings, who was Sheriff of Allegany County, sold the property as a result
of a judgement against the Heirs of Daniel Lantz.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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A-17
Green Ridge State Forest
DNR#: None

Stone Chimney and Higgins Brick Ruins (private
Allegany County

(SIGNIFICANCE, continued)

Daniel Lantz acquired the 311 acres tract (F/307) "Hermit's Abode" on October
22, 1811 from Ovid McCrackin. No records were found prior to Ovid McCracken's
ownership.

Ransom Higgins for whom the property is named and his heirs owned this and
surrounding land from 1859 til 1952. (242/525).

Unfortunately the deeds did not Teave any clues as to the use of this piece
of property. Out conveyances were noted for the C & 0 Canal and a lock house but
there were no other references to any industrial or commercial complex.

One supposed explanation for the stone chimney could be that its use was connected
somehow with the construction of the C & 0 Canal during the mid 19th century. Another
suggestion offered was the possibility of the stone chimney site having been a
distillery.

It would seem that with the lack of historical dataabout the sites, some
archeological work might be in order. A search should be made for artifacts in the
vicinity of the stone chimney which could aid in pinpointing the use and the age
of the structure.
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